MINUTES

GARDEN GROVE CITY COUNCIL

A Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Garden Grove was called to order in the Council Chamber of the Community Meeting Center, 11300 Stanford Avenue, on Tuesday, November 11, 2003, at 6:50 p.m.

ROLL CALL: PRESENT: (5) MAYOR BROADWATER, COUNCILMEMBERS

DALTON, LEYES, ROSEN, TRAN

ABSENT: (0) NONE

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager, George Tindall; Assistant City Manager/Community Development Director, Matthew Fertal; Streets and Street Tree Manager, Keith Jones (representing Public Works Director); Community Services Director, Cal Rietzel; Fire Chief, Keith Osborn; Personnel Services Manager, Linda Cahill (representing Personnel Director); Police Chief, Joe Polisar; City Attorney, John Shaw; and City Clerk, Ruth Smith.

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE

Assistant City Manager Matthew Fertal gave the Invocation. Councilman Rosen led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.

PRESENTATION – COMMUNITY SPOTLIGHT

Mayor Broadwater called forward participants on the City's Teen Ad Hoc Committee, formed last year to address issues affecting teenagers in the community, and presented them with Certificates of Appreciation for the valuable time, effort, and commitment they invested in the Committee. (F: 52.3) (XR: 122.67)

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - PUBLIC

Nativo Lopez, National Director of the National Mexican Latin American Brotherhood and the Mexican American Political Association, and Zeke Hernandez, District 1 Director of the League of United Latin American Citizens, addressed the Council concerning Agenda Item 6.b., urging that the Council not approve the proposed resolution to support the repeal of SB-60, noting that it is a state issue and a transportation and safety issue. (F: 53.3) (XR: 53.1)

-1- 11/11/03

David Vill, President of AARP Chapter 1639, addressed the Council concerning Agenda Item 6.a., urging the Council to support the Orange County CenterLine Light Rail Project, noting that it is important for the senior citizens. (F: 53.3) (XR: 53.1) (XR: 23.18F)

Charles Mitchell addressed the Council, remembering the veterans of our country on this Veterans Day holiday, and inviting everyone to attend the American Legion Meeting in Midway City on November 24, 2003. (F: 53.3)

Diane Streich-Harrell addressed the Council, providing an update on the parking situation in West Haven Park area, noting that the situation has deteriorated and the police have been no help. (F: 53.3) (XR: 73.12) (XR: 75.1)

Laurie Merrick addressed the Council, requesting that a stop sign be placed at Halekalani and Pleasant Street to address traffic issues. She also spoke concerning Agenda Item 3.b., noting that there are better things to do with the \$150,000 proposed to pay a consultant to find out what the community wants.

Mayor Broadwater advised Ms. Merrick to submit her request for the stop sign to the Traffic Commission. (F: 53.3) (XR: 100.2) (XR: 122.11) (XR: 55) XR: 45.1)

Verla Lambert and Kevin Lambert addressed the Council concerning Agenda Item 3.b., noting that the Councilmembers should meet and talk with the residents and listen to their comments and suggestions instead of hiring a consultant. Mrs. Lambert also suggested a Town Hall meeting be held to discuss Harbor Boulevard. (F: 53.3) (XR: 55) (XR: 45.1)

Ray Littrell addressed the Council, noting that one of the hotels on Harbor Boulevard is not paying its property tax. He stated that it is time to audit the hotels' books.

Mayor Broadwater asked staff to provide a report on the gross and net amounts of TOT received for the last six years. (F: 53.3) (XR: 34.4A)

RECESS

At 7:28 p.m. the Mayor declared a recess.

RECONVENE

At 7:29 p.m., the meeting was reconvened with Mayor Broadwater and all Councilmembers in attendance.

-2- 11/11/03

RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT WITH THE BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF GARDEN GROVE FOR THE YOUTH DIVERSION PROGRAM (F: 55) (XR: 74.3) (XR: 82.1)

Staff report dated October 28, 2003, was reviewed, and it was noted that this item was continued from the meeting of October 28, 2003, for further information.

Councilman Rosen commented that this agreement should have come up for renewal earlier inasmuch as it covers services rendered from July 1, 2003. He expressed concern that with the current budget deficit this program may need to be cut next year.

Councilman Dalton noted that this is a viable program and he would support its continuance next year.

Councilman Rosen noted that at some point good programs will probably have to be cut next year.

Councilman Tran commented that this is a vital program, and he would not support its elimination.

It was moved by Mayor Broadwater, seconded by Councilman Rosen, and carried by unanimous vote, that the Agreement by and between the City of Garden Grove and the Boys and Girls Club of Garden Grove for the Youth Diversion Program, be and hereby is approved; and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute the agreement.

AGREEMENT WITH SHELDON PUBLIC RELATIONS TO CONDUCT A COMMUNITY VISION CAMPAIGN TO DETERMINE FUTURE SERVICES, PROJECTS, AND EVENTS FOR THE CITY (F: 55) (XR: 45.1)

Staff report dated November 11, 2003, was introduced, and the City Manager reviewed background information. He noted that there are a lot of "silent majority" people in Garden Grove who do not express their views. Most other cities and companies conduct this type of information-gathering. The General Plan is ten years old, and this would provide updated information.

Mayor Broadwater commented that Council and staff need to know how the citizens feel about their community and what they envision, including thoughts about the 22 Freeway expansion.

Councilman Rosen commented that this is a good proposal, but the timing is off. He noted that a poll was taken last year, and the Council should be able to gauge the pulse of the community. The city is in the midst of a bad financial situation, and this type of endeavor should be a part of the General Plan update.

-3- 11/11/03

Councilman Tran inquired whether this survey could be geared toward the General Plan Amendment. The City Manager responded that that is part of the purpose.

Councilman Rosen responded that if a new General Plan is necessary, staff should provide the Council with a memo, rather than with an ad hoc proposal, as to why we need a General Plan update.

Mayor Broadwater moved approval of the agreement. Councilman Transeconded the motion for the purpose of discussion.

Councilman Tran commented that he respects the residents' concerns about spending the money and the condemnation of the Council. He added that the Councilmembers visit in the community and interact with the residents; however, this is a complicated community.

Councilman Leyes spoke about the fluidity and dynamics of the community, noting that this approach makes sense to him and will benefit everyone. He believes the money will be well spent in determining what the community wants and needs.

Councilman Dalton noted that in Exhibit A of the proposed agreement, under "Direct Mail," it should read that "the city **will** (rather than 'should') mail to every household about its outreach efforts outlined in this proposal as a measure of goodwill." He wants everybody to be considered and contacted, noting that it is a lot of money but it is important that the Council and staff find out what the majority want.

Councilman Leyes stated that Councilman Dalton's comments should be incorporated and passed on to the consultant. He noted that there are references to Non-Hispanic Caucasians and Hispanics, which is narrower than Latino, further noted that there are also some Non-Hispanic Latinos in Garden Grove. There also is a reference to Vietnamese, which is the largest Asian population; however, there are also Asian Pacific Islanders in Garden Grove who are not Vietnamese. He expressed hope that this can also be incorporated into the minutes and by reference into the consultant's approach.

Councilman Rosen noted that the unrevised figures for the City budget show that we have a deficit for this fiscal year of about \$400,000 and next year it's projected to be roughly \$5 million, and the year after that it's projected to be \$12 million. He further commented that the discussion this evening is a textbook example of why the legislature and the Federal government can't balance their budgets.

It was previously moved by Mayor Broadwater and seconded by Councilman Tran, that the Agreement by and between the City of Garden Grove and Sheldon Public Relations to conduct a community vision campaign to determine future services, projects, and events for the city, be and hereby is

-4- 11/11/03

approved; and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute the agreement. Said motion carried by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS: (4) DALTON, LEYES, TRAN,

BROADWATER

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: (1) ROSEN ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: (0) NONE

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT WITH THE GARDEN GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR THE USE OF THE CHAPMAN SPORTS COMPLEX (F: 55) (XR: 87.1) (XR: 95.1) (XR: 73.23)

Staff report dated November 11, 2003, was introduced.

It was moved by Councilman Dalton, seconded by Councilman Tran, and carried by unanimous vote, that the Amendment to the Agreement by and between the City of Garden Grove and the Garden Grove Unified School District for the use of the Chapman Sports Complex, be and hereby is approved; and the City Manager is authorized to execute the agreement.

PROJECT NO. 2003 - PARK IMPROVEMENTS AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS - FINAL PROGRESS PAYMENT AND ACCEPTANCE OF CONTRACT AS COMPLETE (F: 55) (XR: 73.12a) (XR: 24.1)

Staff report dated November 11, 2003, was introduced.

It was moved by Councilman Dalton, seconded by Councilman Tran, and carried by unanimous vote, that Final Progress Payment and Acceptance of Contract as Complete for Project No. 2003, Park Improvements at Various Locations, be and hereby are approved; the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute the appropriate documents; and the Finance Director is authorized to draw a warrant in the amount of \$55,800.16 to Ryco Construction, Inc., and release the retention payment, when appropriate to do so.

APPARATUS DOOR REPLACEMENT AT FIRE STATION NO. 1 – FINAL PROGRESS PAYMENT AND ACCEPTANCE OF CONTRACT AS COMPLETE (F: 55) (XR: 24.1) (XR: 61.1)

Staff report dated November 11, 2003, was introduced.

It was moved by Councilman Dalton, seconded by Councilman Tran, and carried by unanimous vote, that Final Progress Payment and Acceptance of Contract as Complete for the Apparatus Door Replacement at Fire Station No. 1, be and hereby are approved; the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute the appropriate documents; and the Finance Director is authorized to draw a warrant in the amount of \$14,167.80 to DuCharme Door Corporation, and release the retention payment, when appropriate to do so.

-5- 11/11/03

APPOINTMENT OF NEW FINANCE DIRECTOR AT "G" STEP OF SALARY RANGE (F: 78.1)

Staff report dated November 11, 2003, was introduced.

Councilman Dalton referenced the "golden handshake" that had been brought before the Council for consideration and to which he was opposed. The premise was that individuals would be hired to fill vacated positions at a 15-percent lower salary, and the jobs would be held open for 90 days before filling. He noted that the salaries in Garden Grove are lower than those in other cities; however, his main reason for opposing that "golden handshake" was because he did not believe those prospective savings would be realized. He said this is a good example inasmuch as the new Finance Director is not being hired at a 15-percent lower salary and will begin his job probably about five days before the current Finance Director retires.

It was moved by Councilman Dalton, seconded by Councilman Rosen, and carried by unanimous vote, that the appointment of a new Finance Director at "G" step of the salary range for that position, be and hereby is approved.

MINUTES (F: Vault)

It was moved by Councilman Dalton, seconded by Councilman Tran, and carried by unanimous vote, that the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held August 12, 2003, be and hereby are approved.

WARRANTS (F: 60.5)

It was moved by Councilman Dalton, seconded by Councilman Tran, and carried by unanimous vote, that regular warrants 298863 through 300296 and Wires W117 through W119, and payroll warrants 131500 through 131717, Direct Deposits D83416 through D83951, and Wires W783 through W786, which have been audited for accuracy and availability of funds by the Finance Director, be and hereby are approved.

RECESS

At 8:12 p.m. the Mayor declared a recess.

RECONVENE

At 8:19 p.m., the meeting was reconvened with Mayor Broadwater and all Councilmembers in attendance.

AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR 2003/04 AND 2004/05 STREET REHABILITATION (OVERLAY) (F: 24.2[2003/04; 2004/05])

Staff report dated November 11, 2003, was introduced.

-6- 11/11/03

It was moved by Councilman Leyes, seconded by Councilman Tran, and carried by unanimous vote, that Ben's Asphalt, Inc., be and hereby is determined to be the lowest acceptable bidder in connection with the 2003/04 and 2004/05 Street Rehabilitation (Overlay), and that contract for said project be and hereby is awarded to said company in the sum of \$799,606.68 and \$559,272.80, respectively, in accordance with the terms of the City's plans and specifications and the bid submitted by said company; that all other bids be and hereby are rejected; and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute said contract.

SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION TO CALTRANS FOR BICYCLE TRANSPORTATION ACCOUNT FUNDING (F: 33) (XR: 36.6)

Staff report dated November 11, 2003, was introduced.

RESOLUTION NO. 8530-03

It was moved by Leyes, seconded by Councilman Dalton, and carried by unanimous vote, that full reading of Resolution No. 8530-03 be waived, and said Resolution entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDEN GROVE APPROVING THE SUBMITTAL OF ONE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (CALTRANS) FOR FUNDING UNDER THE BICYCLE TRANSPORTATION ACCOUNT, be and hereby is declared adopted.

SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES NO. 2611, NO. 2616, NO. 2617, AND NO. 2618

It was moved by Councilman Dalton, seconded by Councilman Tran, and carried by unanimous vote, that full reading of Ordinances No. 2611, No. 2616, No. 2617, and No. 2618, be waived.

ORDINANCE NO. 2611 for second reading and adoption, by title only, entitled AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDEN GROVE AMENDING CHAPTER 5.12 "REGULATION OF MASSAGE ACTIVITY" WITHIN THE CITY CORPORATE BOUNDARIES (Continued from meeting of October 28, 2003) (F: 50.2) (XR: 82.1)

It was moved by Councilman Rosen, seconded by Councilman Dalton, and carried by unanimous vote, that Ordinance No. 2611 be and hereby is passed.

ORDINANCE NO. 2616 for second reading and adoption, by title only, entitled AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDEN GROVE ADOPTING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN DANIEL AND KIM SEID AND THE CITY OF GARDEN GROVE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 15[™] STREET AND BROOKHURST STREET, AT 10001 15[™] STREET, PARCEL NO. 099-161-23 (F: 106.144) (XR: 116.SP-328-03)

-7- 11/11/03

It was moved by Councilman Tran, seconded by Councilman Dalton, and carried by unanimous vote, that Ordinance No. 2616 be and hereby is passed.

ORDINANCE NO. 2617 for second reading and adoption, by title only, entitled AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDEN GROVE APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE AMENDMENT CHANGING THE ZONING DESIGNATION FROM R-2 (LIMITED MULTIPLE RESIDENTIAL) ZONE TO C-1 (NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL) ZONE, FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF GARDEN GROVE BOULEVARD AND MAGNOLIA STREET AT 9001 GARDEN GROVE BOULEVARD, PARCEL NOS. 133-432-21, 23, AND 39 (F: 20.GPA-1-03) (XR: 115.A-102-03 (XR: 106.145) (XR: 116.SP-330-03)

It was moved by Councilman Rosen, seconded by Councilman Leyes, and carried by unanimous vote, that Ordinance No. 2617 be and hereby is passed.

ORDINANCE NO. 2618 for second reading and adoption, by title only, entitled AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDEN GROVE ADOPTING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN SHIL PARK AND THE CITY OF GARDEN GROVE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF GARDEN GROVE BOULEVARD AND MAGNOLIA STREET, AT 9001 GARDEN GROVE BOULEVARD, PARCEL NO. 133-432-21, 23, 39 (F: 20.GPA-1-03) (XR: 115.A-102-03) (XR: 106.145) (XR: 116.SP-330-03)

It was moved by Councilman Rosen, seconded by Councilman Dalton, and carried by unanimous vote, that Ordinance No. 2618 be and hereby is passed.

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION OPPOSING THE ORANGE COUNTY
CENTERLINE LIGHT RAIL PROJECT, AS REQUESTED BY COUNCILMAN LEYES
(F: 53.1) (XR: 23.18F)

It was noted that this item was continued from the October 28, 2003 meeting so Councilmembers could get additional information. Councilman Leyes commented that it is well past the time for the City of Garden Grove to go on record opposing the CenterLine project as an unnecessary expenditure and encourage the OCTA to reallocate all those resources to other programs and projects that will increase mobility and efficiency of our transportation system, not the least of which would include the 22 Freeway.

Mayor Broadwater referenced the 11th Whereas in the proposed Resolution: "Whereas, OCTA should be pursuing alternative priorities for CenterLine resources, and should be exploring the mechanisms by which to reallocate resources to more effective transportation solutions," and noted that he has been told by a number of individuals that those monies from CenterLine cannot be moved to other resources and can only be used by rail. He noted that he would like to delete that clause, and add the following clause: "Be it further resolved that the City Council of the City of Garden Grove hereby petitions the Orange County Transportation Authority to place a measure on

-8- 11/11/03

the March Primary Election Ballot requesting that the People of Orange County decide whether the monies identified in Measure M for light rail transportation may be redirected to the improvement of the SR 22 Freeway." Mayor Broadwater then made a motion to that effect, seconded by Councilman Rosen.

Mayor Broadwater further suggested that at the next Council meeting discussion take place concerning the City placing its own measure on the March Ballot to find out what the Garden Grove residents think about redirecting those funds to the improvement of the SR 22 Freeway.

Councilman Leyes expressed his agreement with Mayor Broadwater's deletion, addition, and discussion about the possibility of the City's own measure.

Councilman Rosen asked the City Clerk to provide information to the Council as quickly as possible concerning the deadlines imposed for placing measures on the March ballot.

Mayor Broadwater moved, seconded by Councilman Dalton, that Councilman Leyes' resolution be adopted with the deletion of the Whereas clause and the addition of the "Be it further resolved" clause.

Councilman Leyes commented that Measure M really never talked about urban rail; it talked about mass transit, which can include buses, so they could reallocate a lot of the CenterLine money to buses. He noted that although he can support the Mayor's change, it is important to know there are other alternatives as well.

Councilman Rosen noted that CenterLine has sucked up all the resources of OCTA. They are devoted virtually exclusively to CenterLine. Art Lehy, the Director of OCTA, was brought in to build CenterLine. Their top staff people are all devoted to CenterLine, and they have really been very cheap with the resources devoted to the 22 Freeway. He reviewed some background information concerning Measure M, and he commented that Mayor Broadwater's proposal to put it on the County ballot is a good idea, and for the City to put it on its ballot to get our citizens' views on CenterLine is a good idea also. He further noted that as Councilman Leyes commented, this is long overdue. It was discussed by the Council as far back as 1999, at which time it was decided to hold off because other negotiations were going on with OCTA. Those negotiations have been largely unfruitful, and he believes it is time to take a stand, especially since OCTA is about to go ahead with its final environmental documents and actually plans to start construction next year.

Mayor Broadwater commented that all the freeways in the county have been overhauled except for the 22 Freeway. OCTA wants to widen the bridges to accommodate a carpool lane, which would include Harbor Boulevard, Brookhurst Street, Magnolia Street, and Euclid Street. But what they don't want to do is open up the bottom of the bridge so traffic can run north and

-9- 11/11/03

south on these surface streets. It is imperative that the traffic congestion at Magnolia Street and Trask Avenue, which is the worst in the county, be eliminated, and that is what the lawsuit is all about.

RESOLUTION NO. 8531-03

It was moved by Mayor Broadwater, seconded by Councilman Rosen, and carried by unanimous vote, that full reading of Resolution No. 8531-03 be waived, and said Resolution entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDEN GROVE OPPOSING THE CNETERLINE LIGHT RAIL PROJECT AS PROPOSED BY THE ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, be and hereby is declared adopted, as amended above.

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE REPEAL OF SB-60, WHICH ELIMINATES THE REQUIREMENT FOR PROOF OF LEGAL RESIDENCY WHEN OBTAINING A DRIVER'S LICENSE, AS REQUESTED BY COUNCILMAN LEYES (F: 53.1)

It was noted that this matter was continued from the meeting of October 28, 2003.

Councilman Leyes reviewed the changes he made from the previous Resolution he presented on October 28. He noted that SB-60, as it was passed, has minimal protections in terms of verifying somebody's identification as they walk in to apply for a Driver's License. The only single form of identification that it requires is a Federal Employee ID number, which you can get over the phone or the Internet.

Councilman Rosen commented that this is a State issue or perhaps even more of a Federal issue because it concerns immigration policy, and the City should not be taking a position on this.

Councilman Rosen moved, seconded by Mayor Broadwater, that this matter be tabled. Said motion failed to carry by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS: (2) ROSEN, BROADWATER NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: (3) DALTON, LEYES, TRAN

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: (0) NONE

Councilman Tran commented that he believes it is important for the Council to take a position on this, noting that the City has no direct jurisdiction over licensing issues, but the ramifications of movement and driving issues will impact the city.

Councilman Dalton commented that the Department of Motor Vehicles should be required to verify legal residency, noting that there are security issues involved and this is a slap in the face to those who follow the law.

-10-

Mayor Broadwater noted that he has mixed feelings about this; however, he does not believe the City should be involved.

Councilman Rosen noted that the Driver's License should be tied to insurance. SB 60 has a lot of flaws; however, he does not believe Garden Grove should involve itself in this.

Mayor Broadwater noted that he will be abstaining because he believes this is a political issue.

RESOLUTION NO. 8532-03

ICouncilman Leyes moved, seconded by Councilman Dalton, that full reading of Resolution No. 8532-03 be waived, and said Resolution entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDEN GROVE SUPPORTING THE REPEAL OF SENATE BILL NO. 60, CHAPTER 326, STATUTES OF 2003, be and hereby is adopted. Upon the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS: (3) DALTON, LEYES, TRAN

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: (1) ROSEN ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: (0) NONE

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: (1) BROADWATER

said Resolution No. 8532-03 was declared adopted.

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION COMMEMORATING VETERANS DAY AND SUPPORTING OUR TROOPS, AS REQUESTED BY COUNCLMAN LEYES (F: 52.2)

RESOLUTION NO. 8533-03

It was moved by Councilman Leyes, seconded by Councilman Rosen, and carried by unanimous vote, that full reading of Resolution No. 8533-03 be waived, and said Resolution entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDEN GROVE HONORING AMERICA'S MILITARY VETERANS AND PROCLAIMING NOVEMBER 9 THROUGH NOVEMBER 16, 2003, AS VETERANS AWARENESS WEEK, be and hereby is declared adopted.

MATTERS FROM THE MAYOR, CITY COUNCILMEMBERS, AND CITY MANAGER

Councilman Rosen noted that the Garden Grove Community Foundation is selling the Garden Grove-Opoly game as a fundraiser. He noted that this makes a good holiday gift, and he urged residents to purchase this item either at Zlaket's Market or at City Hall.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

At 9:13 p.m., the meeting was adjourned to Closed Session, under the

-11- 11/11/03

Ralph M. Brown Act, and it was announced that pursuant to Government Code section 54957.6, the City Council will meet with its negotiator (City Manager) regarding the status of labor negotiations with the Employee Association, Employee League, non-represented Management and Central Management employees, Garden Grove Police Association, Police Middle Management, and Garden Grove Fire Fighters Local 2005. Also, pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9, the City Council will confer with its Legal Counsel regarding the status of Flores v. Broadwater and regarding the status of Garden Grove v. Orange County Transportation Authority.

Present in Closed Session, in addition to Mayor Broadwater and all Councilmembers, were City Manager, George Tindall; City Attorney, John Shaw (for Flores v. Broadwater); and Deputy City Attorney, Lois Bobak (for Flores v. Broadwater).

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION

At 9:50 p.m., the meeting was reconvened in and it was announced that only the status of Flores v. Broadwater and the status of Garden Grove v. Orange County Transportation Authority were discussed, and no others.

ADJOURNMENT

At 9:51 p.m., the meeting was declared adjourned in memory of Anne Louise Green, long-time Garden Grove resident. (F: 46.9)

RUTH E. SMITH CITY CLERK

-12- 11/11/03